# Nysted I A/S

CVR no. 31164486

# **Annual report 2023**

Approved at the Company's annual general meeting on 18 June 2024

Chair: Jeppe Skov Andersen

# **Contents**

	Pages
Statement by management on the annual report	1
Independent auditor's report	2
Company information	5
Management's review	6
Financial highlights	6
Management commentary	8
Financial statements	
Accounting policies	10
Income statement	16
Balance sheet	17
Statement of changes in equity	19
Notes to the financial statements	20

# Statement by management on the annual report

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board have today discussed and approved the annual report of Nysted I A/S for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2023.

The annual report is prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the company's financial position at 31 December 2023 and of the results of the company's operations for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2023.

In our opinion, management's review includes a fair review of the matters dealt with in the management's review.

Management recommends that the annual report should be approved at the annual general meeting.

Skærbæk, 11 June 2024		
Executive Board:		
Søren Tind Scherfig		
Board of Directors:		
Niels Davidsen, chair	Daniel Langfeldt, deputy Chair	Andrea Groeschel-Möller

#### **Independent auditor's report**

## **Opinion**

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2023 and of the results of the Company's operations for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2023 in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act.

We have audited the Financial Statements of Nysted I A/S for the financial year 1 January - 31 December 2023, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies, income statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity and notes ("financial statements").

# **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the additional ethical requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### **Statement on the Management's review**

Management is responsible for the Management's review.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Management's review, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read Management's Review and, in doing so, consider whether Management's Review is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether the Management's review provides the information required under the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Based on the work we have performed, in our view, Management's Review is in accordance with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish Financial statements Act. We did not identify any material misstatement in Management's Review.

#### **Independent auditor's report**

#### Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

# Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

## **Independent auditor's report**

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Copenhagen, 11 June 2024

 ${\bf Price water house Coopers}$ 

Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab CVR no. 33771231

Frederik Tvedeskov Jantzen State Authorised Public Accountant mne47815

# **Company information**

## Company

Nysted I A/S Kraftværksvej 53 Skærbæk 7000 Fredericia

Company CVR: 31164486

Financial year: 2023-01-01 - 2023-12-31

Annual general meeting: 18 June 2024

#### **Board of Directors**

Niels Davidsen, chair Daniel Langfeldt, deputy Chair Andrea Groeschel-Möller

#### **Executive Board**

Søren Tind Scherfig

#### **Auditors**

PricewaterhouseCoopers Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab Strandvejen 44 2900 Hellerup Denmark

#### **Consolidated financial statements**

The company is included in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company, Ørsted Wind Power Holding A/S, CVR no. 36213728

The annual report of Ørsted Wind Power Holding A/S, CVR no. 36213728 can be obtained at the following address:

https://orstedcdn.azureedge.net/-/media/annual-report-2023/orsted-ar-2023.pdf? rev=526307f68e2047b3a1df8dd2cdf719ec&hash=E6069E12C1792AD620FA12898587394C

# **Management's review**

# Financial highlights

	2023	2022	2021	2020	2019
	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK
Key figures					
Profit/loss					
Revenue	119.622	223.838	139.885	62.449	95.292
Profit/loss before					
amortisation/depreciation	on				
and impairment losses	60.814	142 556	70.462	(7.066)	25 100
Profit/loss before	00.814	143.556	79.463	(7.066)	35.488
net financials	54.984	128.357	62.168	(34.224)	(7.424)
Net financials	5.088	(3.767)	(4.426)	(4.357)	(4.404)
Profit/loss for the	2.000	(3.707)	(4.420)	(4.557)	(4.404)
year	44.376	97.173	45.398	(22.245)	(5.802)
,				,	`
	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK
Balance sheet					
Balance sheet total	402.623	462.346	243.114	222.459	212.559
Investment in					
property, plant and	0	11.200	(1.001)	(2.000)	(1.002)
equipment	0	11.308	(1.021)	(2.099)	(1.903)
Equity	224.608	180.232	83.059	37.661	59.906

# **Management's review**

	%	%	%	%	%
Financial ratios					
EBIT margin	46	57	44	(55)	(8)
Return on assets	13	36	27	(16)	(3)
Solvency ratio	56	39	34	17	28
Return on equity	22	74	75	(46)	(9)

The financial ratios are calculated in accordance with the Danish Finance Society's recommendations and key figures. For definitions, see the summary of accounting policies.

# Management's review

# Management commentary

#### **Business review**

The Company's objects are to engage in activities in the energy sector and ancillary activities. The windfarm of Nysted consists of 72 wind turbines with a total production capacity of 166MW.

#### Recognition and measurement uncertainties

Apart from the uncertainties surrounding future costs for decommissioning of production assets and restoring the seabed, the recognition and measurement of items in the annual report are not subject to any uncertainties.

#### Financial review

The company's income statement for the year ended 31 December 2023 shows a profit of 44.377 TDKK (2022: profit of 97.171 TDKK), and the balance sheet at 31 December 2023 shows equity of 224.609 TDKK (2022: 180.229 TDKK).

# Net profit (loss) relation to expected development assumed in previous report

In the annual report of 2022, no expectations to the development to the financial performance for 2023 were set.

#### Outlook

Financial performance for 2024 is expected to be in line with 2023 due to continued stable operation and power prices.

Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation is expected to be in the range of 50.000-55.000 TDKK.

#### Corporate social responsibility

#### **Environmental aspects**

**Policy** 

The company works with environmental management to continuously reduce its environmental impact through improved processes and procedures, set environmental priorities and targets, develop action plans as well as to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

# Management's review

The Danish Environmental Protection Agency monitors the environmental impact of Nysted Havmøllepark during the operating stage.

Nysted Havmøllepark is certified according to ISO 14001 (Environmental Management Systems) and OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health and Safety) and has implemented the necessary processes and systems to fulfil the requirements. Three internal reviews are done each year and an external review by an independant third party is done every third year.

## **Accounting policies**

The annual report of Nysted I A/S for 2023 has been prepared in accordance with the provisions in the Danish Financial Statements Act applying to Reporting class C, medium-size enterprise entities.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of last year.

The annual report for 2023 is presented in TDKK.

## 1 Basis of recognition and measurement

Income is recognised in the income statement as earned, including value adjustments of financial assets and liabilities. All expenses, including depreciation and impairment losses, are also recognised in the income statement.

Assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company and the value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow from the company and the value of the liability can be measured reliably.

On initial recognition, assets and liabilities are measured at cost. On subsequent recognition, assets and liabilities are measured as described below for each individual accounting item.

Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated as the historic cost less any installments and plus/less the accumulated amortisation of the difference between the cost and the nominal amount.

On recognition and measurement, allowance is made for predictable losses and risks which occur before the annual report is presented and which confirm or invalidate matters existing at the balance sheet date.

#### 2 Income statement

#### 2.1 Revenue

Income from the sale of electricity is recognised in the income statement, provided that the transfer of risk, usually on delivery to the buyer, has taken place and that the income can be measured reliably and is expected to be received.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the agreed consideration, excluding VAT and other indirect taxes. Revenue is net of all types of discounts granted.

## **Accounting policies**

#### 2.2 Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprise the costs incurred by the company to generate the years revenue. Such costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

#### 2.3 Other external expenses

Other external expenses include expenses related to machinery and stock maintenance, production costs, administration, etc.

#### 2.4 Depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation and impairment losses comprise the year's amortisation, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment.

## 2.5 Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses are recognised in the income statement at the amounts relating to the financial year. Net financials include interest income and expenses, realised and unrealised capital/exchange gains and losses on group loans and deposits etc. Financial income and expenses also include interest element on abandonment.

## 2.6 Tax for the year

The company is subject to the Danish rules on mandatory joint taxation of the Group's Danish subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are included in the joint taxation arrangement from the date when they are included in the consolidated financial statements and up to the date when they are no longer consolidated.

The ultimate parent company acts as management company for the joint taxation arrangement and consequently settles all corporate income tax payments with the tax authorities.

On payment of joint taxation contributions, the Danish corporate income tax charge is allocated between the jointly taxed entities in proportion to their taxable income. Entities with tax losses receive joint taxation contributions from entities that have been able to use the tax losses to reduce their own taxable income.

The tax expense for the year, which comprises the year's current tax charge, joint taxation contributions and changes in the deferred tax charge - including changes arising from changes in tax rates - is recognised in the income statement as regards the portion that relates to the profit/loss for the year and directly in equity as regards the portion that relates to entries directly in equity.

## **Accounting policies**

#### 3 Balance sheet

## 3.1 Tangible assets

Tangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The depreciable amount is cost less the expected residual value at the end of the useful life.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to the acquisition until the date when the asset is available for use. The cost of self-constructed assets comprises direct and indirect costs of materials, components, sub-suppliers and wages.

Where individual parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost is divided into separate parts, which are depreciated separately, and the individual part constitutes a significant part of the total cost.

Straight-line depreciation is provided on the basis of the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Plant and machinery 20-24 years

The residual value of the company's property, plant and equipment is reassessed annually.

# 3.2 Investments in joint operations

Capital investments in joint operations include jointly operated licenses regarding wind turbine plants.

Capital investments in joint operations are recognised in the parent company's accounts by recognising the parent company's share of the jointly controlled assets and liabilities, classified according to the character of assets and liabilities as well as the parent company's share of revenue of the sale of the jointly controlled activity's production along with the parent company's share of the costs incurred by the jointly controlled activity.

Based on the ownership share a proportional elimination is done regarding internal revenue and cost, internal outstanding accounts as well as realized and unrealized profits and losses of transactions between the enterprises involved.

#### 3.3 Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment, other than what is reflected through normal amortisation and depreciation, on an annual basis.

# **Accounting policies**

Where there are indications of impairment, an impairment test is performed for each individual asset or group of assets, respectively. The carrying amount of impaired assets is reduced to the higher of the net selling price and the value in use (recoverable amount).

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net present value and the value in use less expected costs to sell. The net present value is determined as the present value of the anticipated net cash flows from the use of the asset or group of assets and the anticipated net cash flows from the disposal of the asset or group of assets after the end of their useful life.

#### 3.4 Receivables

Receivables are measured at amortised cost.

An impairment loss is recognised if there is objective evidence that a receivable or a group of receivables is impaired. If there is objective evidence that an individual receivable has been impaired, an impairment loss is recognised on an individual basis.

# 3.5 Equity

#### (a) Other reserve

In 2019 the share capital was decreased and the amount not used to cover losses at that time was transferred to "special reserve" DKK 64 million. This reserve will be used to cover future losses.

## (b) Dividend

Dividend proposed for the year is recognised as a liability at the date when they are adopted at the annual general meeting (declaration date). Dividend expected to be distributed for the year is disclosed as a separate item under equity.

#### 3.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when as a result of a past event the company's has a legal or constructive obligation and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions, except for deferred tax, are measured at fair value.

## **Accounting policies**

Provisions for the decommissioning of production assets and restoration are measured at the present value of the future liability in respect of decommissioning and shutdown as estimated at the balance sheet date. The amount provided is determined on the basis of existing requirements and estimated expenses, which are discounted to present value. If specific risks are deemed to attach to a provision, the estimated expenses are recognised. A discount rate is used that reflects the general interest rate level in society. These liabilities are recognised as they arise and are adjusted on a regular basis to reflect changes in requirements, price level, etc. The value of the provision is recognised in property, plant and equipment and depreciated together with the relevant assets. The increase in time of the present value of the provision is recognised in profit/loss for the year as financial expenses.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations existing under the contract. If it is considered unlikely that an outflow from the enterprise of economic resources will be required to settle a liability, or if the liability cannot be measured reliably, the liability is accounted for as a contingent liability that is not recognised in the balance sheet. Material contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.

#### 3.7 Income tax and deferred tax

Current tax liabilities and current tax receivables are recognised in the balance sheet as the estimated tax on the taxable income for the year, adjusted for tax on the taxable income for previous years and tax paid on account.

Deferred tax is measured according to the liability method in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax base, calculated on the basis of the planned use of the asset and settlement of the liability, respectively. Deferred tax is measured at net realisable value.

The company and all its Danish group entities are taxed on a joint basis. The current income tax charge is allocated between the jointly taxed entities relative to their taxable income. Tax losses are allocated based on the full absorption method. The jointly taxed entities are eligible for the Danish Tax Prepayment Scheme.

Joint taxation contributions payable and receivable are recognised in the balance sheet as 'Corporation tax receivable' or 'Corporation tax payable'.

Deferred tax is measured according to the tax rules and at the tax rates applicable in the respective countries at the balance sheet date when the deferred tax is expected to crystallise as current tax.

# **Accounting policies**

#### 3.8 Liabilities

Liabilities, which include trade payables, payables to group entities and other payables, are measured at amortised cost, which is usually equivalent to nominal value.

## 3.9 Foreign currency translation

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated applying the exchange rate at the transaction date. Foreign exchange differences arising between the exchange rates at the transaction date and at the date of payment are recognised in the income statement as financial income or financial expenses.

Receivables and payables and other monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The difference between the exchange rates at the balance sheet date and the date at which the receivable or payable arose or was recognised in the latest financial statements is recognised in the income statement as financial income or financial expenses.

Fixed assets acquired in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the transaction date.

#### 4 Cash flow statement

In pursuance of Section 86(4) of the Danish Financial Statements Act, the company has omitted preparing a cash flow statement as the company's cash flow is included in the consolidated cash flow statement of Ørsted A/S.

## 4.1 Financial highlights

Definitions of financial ratios.

EBIT margin	Profit/loss before financials x 100
	Revenue
Return on assets	Profit/loss before financials x 100
	Average assets
Solvency ratio	Equity, end of year x 100
	Total assets at year-end
Return on equity	Net profit for the year x 100
	Average equity

# **Income statement 01 January - 31 December**

	Note _	2023	2022
	_	TDKK	TDKK
Revenue		119.622	223.838
Operating expenses		(3.179)	(2.901)
Other external expenses		(58.808)	(77.381)
Gross profit	_	57.635	143.556
Staff costs	1	0	0
Profit before amortisation/depreciation and	_		
impairment losses		57.635	143.556
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and			
equipment		(5.559)	(15.199)
Other operating expenses		(271)	0
Profit before net financials	_	51.805	128.357
Financial income	2	10.162	1.046
Financial expenses	3 _	(5.074)	(4.813)
Profit before tax		56.893	124.590
Tax on profit/loss for the year	4 _	(12.517)	(27.417)
Profit for the year	=	44.376	97.173
Distribution of profit	5		

# **Balance sheet 31 December**

	Note	2023	2022
		TDKK	TDKK
Assets			
Non-current assets			
Tangible assets	6		
Plant and machinery		33.420	28.227
		33.420	28.227
Total non-current assets		33.420	28.227
Current assets			
Receivables			
Trade receivables		7.026	70.638
Other receivables		9	0
Deferred tax asset	7	27.545	26.364
Receivables from group companies	8 _	334.623	337.117
	_	369.203	434.119
Total current assets	_	369.203	434.119
Total assets	-	402.623	462.346
Equity and liabilities			
Equity			
Share capital	9	1.000	1.000
Other reserves		64.000	64.000
Retained earnings	_	159.608	115.232
Total equity	_	224.608	180.232
Non-current liabilities			
Other provisions	10	142.854	138.052
Total non-current liabilities	_	142.854	138.052
Current liabilities			
Payables to group companies		21.822	113.012
Other payables		57	25
Corporation tax payable		13.282	31.025
Total current liabilities	_	35.161	144.062

# **Balance sheet 31 December**

	Note _	2023	2022
		TDKK	TDKK
Total liabilities	_	178.015	282.114
Total equity and liabilities	_	402.623	462.346
Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial			
obligations	11		
Related parties and ownership structure	12		

Nysted I A/S

# Statement of changes in equity

		Retained		
	Share capital	earnings Ot	her reserves	Total
	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK	TDKK
Equity at 1 January 2023	1.000	115.232	64.000	180.232
Net profit/loss for the year	0	44.376	0	44.376
Equity at 31 December 2023	1.000	159.608	64.000	224.608

## Notes to the financial statements

## 1. Staff costs

	2023	2022
Average number of employees	1	1

By reference to section 98b(3), (ii), of the Danish Financial Statements Act, remuneration to Management is not disclosed.

The board of directors have not been paid remuneration.

# 2. Financial income

	2023	2022
	TDKK	TDKK
Interest income from group enterprises	10.162	1.046
	10.162	1.046
3. Financial expenses		
	2023	2022
	TDKK	TDKK
Interest expense to group enterprises	271	269
Other financial expenses	4.803	4.544
	5.074	4.813
4. Tax for the year		
	2023	2022
	TDKK	TDKK
Tax for the year		
Current tax for the year	13.282	31.025
Deferred tax for the year	(765)	(3.609)
Adjustment of tax concerning previous years	416	1
Adjustment of deferred tax concerning previous years	(416)	0
	12.517	27.417

# Notes to the financial statements

# 5. Distribution of profit

·	2023 TDKK	Z022 TDKK
Recommended appropriation of profit/loss		
Retained earnings	44.376	97.173
	44.376	97.173
6. Tangible assets		
		Plant and machinery TDKK
Cost at 1 January 2023		1.091.153
Additions		11.024
Disposals		(11.024)
Cost at 31 December 2023	_	1.091.153
Depreciation and impairment losses at 1 January 2023	_	1.062.926
Depreciation		5.559
Disposals		(10.752)
Depreciation and impairment losses at 31 December 2023	_	1.057.733
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023	_	33.420

## Notes to the financial statements

# 7. Deferred tax

	2023	2022
	TDKK	TDKK
Deferred tax at 1 January	26.364	22.755
Adjustment of the deferred tax charge	416	0
Deferred tax recognised in income statement	765	3.609
Deferred tax at 31 December	27.545	26.364
The deferred tax charge relates to:		
Property, plant and equipment	3.883	4.008
Other non-current liabilities	(31.428)	(30.372)
Transferred to deferred tax asset	(27.545)	(26.364)
Deferred tax asset		
Calculated tax asset	27.545	26.364
Carrying amount	27.545	26.364

# 8. Receivables from group companies

The company's receivables from group companies includes TDKK 334.623 in a cash pool scheme with the ultimate parent company Ørsted A/S (2022: TDKK 337.117).

# Notes to the financial statements

# 9. Share capital

The share capital consists of 1.000 shares of a nominal value of TDKK 1. No shares carry any special rights.

# Analysis of changes in the share capital over the past five years

-	2023 TDKK	2022 TDKK	2021 TDKK	2020 TDKK	Z019 TDKK
Share capital at 1 January Disposals for the	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	100.000
year	0	0	0	0	(99.000)
Share capital at 31 December	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000	1.000

# 10. Other provisions

2023	2022
TDKK	TDKK
138.052	122.200
4.802	4.544
0	11.308
142.854	138.052
142.854	0
0	138.052
142.854	138.052
	TDKK  138.052 4.802 0 142.854  142.854 0

#### Notes to the financial statements

## 11. Contingent assets, liabilities and other financial obligations

## 11.1 Liability in joint taxation

The group's Danish companies are jointly and severally liable for tax on group jointly taxes income, etc. Reference is made to the annual report for Ørsted A/S, the administration company in relation to joint taxation. The group's Danish companies are also jointly and severally liable for Danish withholding taxes on dividends, royalties and interests within the group of jointly taxed entities. Any subsequent corrections to income and withholding taxes may result in an increase in the entities' liability.

The group's danish entities are jointly and severally liable for joint VAT registration.

# 11.2 Other contingent liabilities

The company participates at a rate of 50 % in a partnership in respect of a project within renewable energy. The company is jointly and severally liable together with other participants for liabilities relating to agreements entered into. The company has no other material contingent liabilities.

# 12. Related parties and ownership structure

#### **Controlling interest**

Ørsted Wind Power Denmark A/S, Kraftværksvej 53, 7000 Fredericia (parent company)

## Other related parties

Ørsted A/S (Ultimate parent company)
The Danish State represented by the Ministry of Finance
Group enterprises and associates
Board of directors, executive board and senior employee

#### **Transactions**

In pursuance of Section 98c (7) of the Danish Financial Statements Act, the Company has chosen only to disclose transactions that are not carried out on an arm's length basis.

#### 12.1 Ownership structure

According to the company's register of shareholders, the following shareholder holds at least 5% of the votes or at least 5% of the share capital:

Ørsted Wind Power Denmark A/S Stadtwerke Lübeck GmbH